ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
March 20, 2008
9:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Lesil McQuire, Chair
Senator Gary Stevens, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Lyda Green

Senat or Con Bunde

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 198

"An Act extending the statute of limtations for the filing of
conmplaints with the Alaska Public Ofices Conmm ssion involving
state election canpaigns, reducing the period in which an

el ected candidate nay continue to accept contributions; limting
the quantity of wunused canpaign contributions a candidate may
transfer to a political party; increasing the penalty for a

| obbyist or enployer of a |obbyist who fails to properly
register or file a report; and extending the statute of
l[imtations for prosecutions of violations of the Al aska
El ecti on Code."

FAI LED TO MOVE OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 199
"An Act extending the statute of limtations for the filing of
conplaints with the Alaska Public Ofices Conm ssion involving
state el ection canpaigns.”

MOVED SB 199 OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 12
Proposi ng an anendnment to the Uniform Rules of the Al aska State
Legislature relating to voting.

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 203

"An Act requiring a legislator to abstain from voting on
guestions affecting an enterprise if the |egislator or nenber of
the legislator's imediate famly has a financial interest in

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 20, 2008



the enterprise that is substantial, and requiring a |egislator
to abstain from taking or wthholding official action or
exerting official influence in certain matters in which the
legislator's action or influence could benefit another person;
making the Act conditionally effective; and providing for an
effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO 213
"An Act relating to the audit authority of the |legislative audit
di vision. ™

MOVED CSSB 213(STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 198

SHORT Tl TLE: CAMPAI GN FI NANCE/ ELECTI ON CODE VI OLATI ONS
SPONSCR('S) : SENATOR(S) W ELECHOWSBKI, THOVAS

01/ 16/ 08 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/ 08

01/ 16/ 08 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 08 (S) STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 20/ 08 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 211

Bl LL: SB 199
SHORT TI TLE. CAMPAI GN FI NANCE COVPLAI NTS
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) THERRI AULT

01/ 16/ 08 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/ 08

01/ 16/ 08 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 08 (S) STA, FIN

03/ 20/ 08 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 211

BILL: SCR 12

SHORT TI TLE: AMEND UNI FORM RULES: ABSTAI N FROM VOTI NG
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) W ELECHOWSK

01/ 16/ 08 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 08 (S) STA, JUD
03/ 20/ 08 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 203
SHORT TI TLE: LEG SLATI VE ETHI CS: VOTI NG & CONFLI CTS
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) W ELECHOWSK

01/ 16/ 08 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/08
01/ 16/ 08 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 20, 2008



01/ 16/ 08 (S) STA, JUD
03/ 20/ 08 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 213
SHORT TI TLE: LEG SLATI VE AUDI T DI VI SI ON POAERS
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) DYSON

01/ 16/ 08 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/08

01/ 16/ 08 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 08 (S) STA, FIN

03/ 20/ 08 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR BI LL W ELECHOWSKI

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 198.

CHRI' S ELLI NGSON, Acting Executive Director

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion

Anchor age AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about SB 198 and 199.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 199.

M CHELLE SYDEMAN, St aff

to Senator Bill W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SCR 12.

DAN WAYNE, Attorney

Legal and Research Services Division

Al aska Legislative Affairs

Juneau AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about SCR 12.

SENATOR FRED DYSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 21.

PAT DAVI DSON, Auditor
D vision of Legislative Audit

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 20, 2008



Juneau AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about SB 21.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR LESIL MCQU RE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:07:41 AM Senators French,
Stevens, Bunde, and McGQuire were present at the call to order

Senator Green arrived |l ater.

SB 198- CAMPAI GN_FI NANCE/ ELECTI ON_CODE VI OLATI ONS

9:07: 52 AM
CHAI R MCGAUI RE announced the consi deration of SB 198.

SENATOR BI LL W ELECHOWSKI, Al aska State Legislature, said SB 198
is based on recommendations by the Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC) to restore the statute of limtations to four
years for investigating and prosecuting violations of state
canpaign finance reforns. Alaska has only a single year now
Most states allow for nore tine for violations to cone to |ight
and be investigated. Georgia allows three to five years.
Washington and California allow conplaints to be filed within
four years. Connecticut, Mssachusetts, Hawaii, and New Jersey,
have no tinme limts. Several states extend their statutes for
fraud and msrepresentation for one year from the date of
di scovery. At the wunaninmous urging from APOC, SB 198 would

reinstate the four-year statute of Iimtations that existed
until 2003, providing sufficient time for a violation to be
di scovered and investigated. The bill wIll restrict post-

election fundraising to ten days after an election. It also
limts surplus campaign funds that can be given to a political
party to $5,000, in conformty wth AS15.030.70, which linmts
i ndi vi dual donations to political parties. At the reconmmendation
of the APOC conmi ssioners, SB 198 will also increase the civi
penalty for |obbyists who don't file required reports with the
conmi ssion from $10 to $50 per day. It has not been increased
since 1976, and APCC is concerned that it is not substantial
enough to encourage tinely filing.

9:10: 31 AM
CHAI R MCGUI RE asked why 10 days instead of 45 for fundraising.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI said it was a recomrendation by APOC, and

the fundamental idea is that once soneone wins an election he or
she shoul dn’t fundrai se.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 20, 2008



SENATOR STEVENS asked if this has been a problem

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI said he is willing to take that provision
out .

CHAI R MCGQUI RE suggested that an underdog may win and then wants
an opportunity to recover costs.

SENATOR BUNDE said it seens that some |osers of federa
canpaigns have fundraisers to recoup personal funds. He
understands that ten days may include noney in the mail. But a
winner may be able to lean on people and there may be nore
pressure than froma loser’s fundraising activities.

9:13: 00 AM

CHRIS ELLINGSON, Acting Executive Director, Alaska Public
O fices Commssion, said the rationale for the ten days is based
on what has been happening since canpaign finance reform The
wi nners wusually get nobst of the noney before and after the
el ection. There seens to be a run of post-election fundraising
to recoup sonme personal noney and to pay off debts, but nuch of
it is used to give away to others. APCC has | ooked at where this
noney is going. Some goes to charities that had a close
relationship with the winner and sone goes to the political
party. APOC is considering reinstating the ten-day post-election
report and changing the year-end report due date to Decenber 31,
whi ch makes nore sense. “That’s why they were |ooking at the
ten-day tine frame. They were not wedded to it and if it is a
problem |’ msure that they would understand if it cane out.”

9:15:19 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said he supports |limting “the notion of
harvesting noney and then turning it around and passing it on to
parties and charities and that sort of thing.” The bill also
contains a $5,000 maximum contribution, and he asked if that
woul d address those concerns. “The other thing is if it was
limted to only people who lost the election, would that help?
Because ... soneone that has won the election and then has a
fundrai ser ...people nay feel pressured to attend that.”

MS. ELLINGSON said the $5,000 would nmake a big difference. If
that stays in, APOCC would have no problem with the tine period
being up to the 45'" day. O inportance is that the people who
run and win are the ones who can have a fundraiser. A fundraiser
for a |loser doesn’t really happen.

9:17:18 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 20, 2008



SENATOR STEVENS asked if the noney is really a problem He would
be lucky to have noney left over after an election. How often
has over $5,000 been given to a political party?

M5. ELLINGSON said quite often because of the limts of rolling
money forward to a new canpaign. She has seen anywhere from
$10, 000 to $20,000, and it doesn’t necessarily go to the central
commttee, it may go to different arns of the commttees.

SENATOR STEVENS sai d he wants sone facts before he woul d agree.

MS. ELLI NGSON said she can get it to him but there are between
five and six candidates that distribute that nuch to parties
after every election canpaign. It is part of the disbursenent
process after the election is over.

9:19: 02 AM

SENATOR FRENCH asked if a person could donate $5,000 to the
Republican Party and then give nore to a subdivision of the
party, like a candidate’s fund. WIIl it all count toward the
[imt?

MS. ELLINGSON said yes. Everyone else in the state who wants to
contribute to the party can only give $5,000, so why shouldn’t a
candi date have the same limt?

SENATOR FRENCH asked if this bill wll make $5,000 the tota
[imt and not allow giving $5,000 to different subdivisions.

9:20: 37 AM

M5. ELLINGSON said it will bring it in line with every other
person that contributes. That is the total maxi num

SENATOR STEVENS asked if this is abused by both parties.
M5. ELLI NGSON sai d, absol utely.

SENATOR BUNDE asked how often the |obbyist fine is inposed now,
and how many days are they usually in arrears.

M5. ELLINGSON said at every APOC neeting there are five to

fifteen | obbyists up for civil penalty review because they want
to appeal them Lobbyists have paid up to $7,000 at $10 per day.

SENATOR BUNDE asked if they are accessed the penalty when they
are under appeal .

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 20, 2008



M5. ELLI NGSON sai d | obbyists have to file a report and then they
are assessed a penalty. The clock stops the day the report is
filed. They can appeal it once they get the penalty letter.

SENATOR STEVENS said a $7,000 fine could go up to $35, 000.
MB. ELLI NGSON agr eed.

9:23:20 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said he is not a great friend of |obbyists but
the fine sounds high, but they do earn lots of noney. He has a
problem with the ten days and the $5,000. He wants to know why
it is so bad that the parties receive funds and disburse themto
t he candi dates. What is so bad about the current systenf

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI said M. Ellingson had conpelling
testinmony. APOC is unaninmous on it. If a |obbyist is getting
fined $7,000 it neans reports haven't been filed for over two
years, and M. Elingson said there were five to fifteen
| obbyi sts per APOC neeting. It is a problem and if the fine is
increased it mght solve it. The fine is so snall |obbyists
decide to pay the fine instead of disclosing information.

9:26: 09 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said he understands the logic of not letting a
candi date donate nore than anyone else. He supports the $5,000
limt. The ten-day tinmeframe wasn’'t as inportant to APOCC. He
heard Ms. Ellingson say there were ten to fifteen |obbyists
appealing, not in arrears. A person files, neets the deadline,
and then argues about it afterwards. He doesn’t understand why a
| obbyi st wouldn’t file on a tinely basis, so he is not concerned
about the $50 a day. He doesn’t understand why a w nner “should
be able to do the 45 days. | don't know if we want to be
creative and say |losers get 45 days and w nners get 10.” Maybe
it isnt worth the effort because not nmany people go to a
| oser's fundraiser. There nay be people who run with the idea of
recoupi ng sone of their losses after the election. He asked M.
El I i ngson about differentiating between wi nners and | osers.

9:28:22 AM
M5. ELLINGSON said it would be doable but prefers keeping it
equal across the board. APCC is not wedded to the ten-day |imt.

CHAIR MCGQU RE said if candidates are doing what they should be

doing, they are out knocking on doors and canpaigning.
Fundraising is a burden, but the noney helps get the nessage

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 20, 2008



out. She raises noney after the deadline because she has no tine
during the el ection. She doesn’t raise noney to give to a party.

SENATOR FRENCH said the heart of this proposal is extending the
statute of limtations. This is what the public wants. The bil
has a long way to go, and he wants the commttee to agree to |et
that provision go forward today. A one-year statute of
[imtation on canpaign violations is insufficient given the
meager resources of APOC. He wants to rally around that part of
the bill. He doesn’t know how much of a problem post-election
fundraising is, but APOC thinks it is a problem There should be
some time limt on fundraising. He has seen sonme |losers hold
fundrai sers, and maybe they are being encouraged to run again.
“I"’ve had to cone deeply out of pocket to get through an
el ection cycle, and so you try to get sone of that back.” He
suggested changing the Iimt to 30 days, keeping the statute of
[imtations, and noving the bill.

9:32: 05 AM
SENATOR BUNDE said there is another bill that addresses only the
four-year statute of l[imtations. This bill could be set aside.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said she would like to let both bills nmove through
the process. Thirty days seens |ike a conprom se.

SENATOR FRENCH noved conceptual Anendnment 1, as foll ows:

On page 2, line 8:
Del ete “ten”
Insert “thirty”

Hearing no objection, conceptual Amendnent 1 passed.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE said she would like to hear how that plays out,
and maybe with the limtation on the party donation, it wll
t ake care of the problem

SENATOR STEVENS said he wants to know the reason for the $5, 000.
He gets noney from the Republican Party. He has never returned
any to it, but it may be a good idea to return noney to those
coffers. Wiat is wong with it?

9:34:11 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said APOC unaninmously supported these
changes, and it puts everyone in line with what any other
individual in the state can donate. The neat of the bill is the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 20, 2008



statute of limtation. If the cormttee is concerned, perhaps it
can be taken up at another tinme.

SENATOR STEVENS said APOC has not presented a conpelling
argunent. There is nothing wong with returning funds to the
party that supported him He al so questioned the 30-day limt.

SENATOR FRENCH said there should be sone limt, and 30 days is
enough tinme to wap up a canpaign and settle the debts. He is
not sure any abuses have been centered on settling canpaign
accounts. He wouldn’t oppose an anendnent to strike Section 3.

SENATOR BUNDE objected. This is a package of reconmmendations
from APOC and the conmttee is dissecting and picking anong
them “If you want a clean bill, we’ ve got one.”

CHAIR MCGUI RE said she will oppose the anmendnent because she can
see where a party is using candidates — who are propped up by
the party -- to regenerate funds. It is outside the regular
met hod for raising noney for the party.

9:37: 09 AM
SENATOR FRENCH he said he woul dn’t oppose a notion, but did not
nove an anendnent.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said Senator Stevens has nmde good points, and
per haps between now and the next commttee, he can get nore
i nformation.

SENATOR FRENCH noved to report SB 198, as anended, from
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fiscal
not e(s).

SENATOR BUNDE objected. There are two bills with the core
provision, and this is nore conplicated. SB 198 shouldn’'t nove
out of conmttee when there are a |lot of questions. “W should
work on this bill, and | think these $5,000 questions are
i mportant ones. Let the clean bill nove forward, and we can |et
this one catch up after we get our questions answered.”

9:39: 14 AM

CHAIR MCGUI RE said she doesn’t want politics to get in the way
of what seens to be a good idea. “Good enough that you have two
menbers out of 20 that have put it forward.” She wants to put
them both forward and see whi ch one noves ahead.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -9- March 20, 2008



A roll call vote was taken. Senators French and McQuire voted in
favor of noving SB 198 from commttee, and Senators Bunde and
Stevens voted against. The bill failed to nove out of commttee
on a vote of 2 to 2.

SB 199- CAMPAI GN FI NANCE COVPLAI NTS

9:40: 50 AM
CHAI R MCGU RE announced the consideration of SB 199, which is
simlar to SB 198 but only addresses the statute of limtations.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT, Al aska State Legislature, said SB 199
increases the statute of I|imtations from one year to four
years. Section 2 just clarifies that it will apply to any matter
that has taken place within the past year and forward. It wll
not be retroactive to four years. The change to one year was in
a bill that was introduced by the adm nistration and intended to
abolish APCC. There wasn't a lot of debate on the statute of
l[imtations. He doesn’'t recall an objection from APCC, but it
may have been focused on other aspects of the bill, Iike
abol i shing APCC. The fiscal note is not insignificant.

The commttee took a brief at-ease at 9:43:15 AM

9:43:31 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT said APCC was struggling with its budget back
then, and shortening the statute of limtations freed up sone

financial pressures. Wth the dynamcs of the legislature in the
| ast year and a half, it is prudent to revisit the issue. SB 199
is wholly contained in SB 198, and he would support noving SB
198 instead. There is an unwitten rule that the | ower-nunbered
bill noves. That rule should be followed but was violated this
week and he was di sappointed. Parts of SB 198 are problematic to
sone menbers. His view on the $5,000 limt is that the npney
would not be an individual personal donation. If there is a
surplus after a canmpaign, it has to be given away. To say that
it should be treated the sanme as a personal donation is not
| ogi cal

9:46: 17 AM
SENATOR BUNDE asked if SB 199 addresses APOC s mami n concern.

CHRI'S ELLINGSON, Acting Executive Director, Alaska Public
O fices Comm ssion, said the comm ssion was open to four or five
years, and would be delighted with four years. It puts it back
to what it was before 2003.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 20, 2008



SENATOR STEVENS asked how it conpares with federal |aw.

MS. ELLINGSON said she doesn’'t know exactly, but she has seen
i nvestigations go back ten years.

9:48: 27 AM
SENATOR BUNDE said it is obviously |longer than four years.

SENATOR GREEN asked about the difficulty in building a case in
that time frame and if there is lost information. She asked if
things couldn’t be substantiated after four years.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said following a paper trail wll be nore
problematic, and that is what drives part of the fiscal note.

SENATOR BUNDE said the rule of thunb is keeping cancel ed checks
for seven years. This may nmean that people shouldn’'t clean out
their files until after four years.

SENATOR THERRI AULT sai d he keeps his paperwork forever.

CHAIR MCGQU RE said it is difficult to retrace. It is a burden
with expectations. There are nmany things to keep records of,
i ncludi ng her son’s dividend and col | ege fund.

9:51: 21 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said the four-year limtation is part of a concern
on the lack of ethical behavior. He asked if APOC was not able
to address sone viol ati ons because of the short tinme limt.

MS. ELLI NGSON sai d yes, and sone nay have been m nor.

SENATOR BUNDE said, “Then it isn't just a PR thing.” SB 199 is
the guts of the matter and not just a feel-good thing. It is
necessary, and he noved SB 199 from commttee w th individua
recomendati ons and attached fiscal note(s). There being no
obj ection, SB 199 passed out of conmttee.

SCR 12- AMEND UNI FORM RULES: ABSTAI N FROM VOTI NG
SB 203- LEG SLATI VE ETH CS: VOTI NG & CONFLI CTS

9:53: 28 AM
CHAI R MCAUI RE announced the considerati on of SCR 12 and SB 203.

M CHELLE SYDEMAN, Staff to Senator Bill Welechowski, said SCR

12 will bring Alaska in line with nost other states prohibiting
| egislators who have a substantial financial stake from voting

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 20, 2008



on a bill. She said 65 percent of states do this, including
Col orado, Florida, Miine, Texas and Washi ngton. An additional 35
percent allow legislators with substantial conflicts to request
perm ssion to abstain. Mst of these states permt abstention if
a mpjority of legislators vote to grant it. Alaska is the only
state that requires unani nous consent before a legislator with a
conflict can abstain from a vote. The Center for Ethics in
Governnment knows of no other states. The House Cerk and the
Senate Secretary do not recall a single tinme when perm ssion to
abstain was granted. Alaska is at the far end of the spectrum
even anong states wth small citizen legislatures. Existing
statutes go to lengths to insure that conflicts are substantia

before a legislator would be required to abstain. Any benefit a
| egi sl ator mght receive from supporting a particular piece of
| egislation would have to be greater than the benefit a |arge
group of Alaskans would receive in order to require abstention

A legislator who teaches during the interim could vote on the
sal ary of teachers, because the gain is shared anong nmany.

9:56:47 AM

M5. SYDEMAN said SCR 12 would require legislators to declare
their conflict, identify the provision of the ethics act that
woul d be violated, and abstain from voting. A request to abstain
due to anything other than ethical concerns would still require
unani nous consent. There will be few instances that a nenber
will be able to denonstrate direct and substantial economc

benefit that is greater than that received by the substanti al
class of persons to which that |egislator belongs as a nenber of
a profession, industry or region. This is the existing |anguage
of AS24.60.030. In those rare instances, this change in the
uni form rules would provide assurance that decisions are nade in
the public interest. It would also protect legislators from
al l egations that a vote was influenced by personal concerns.

SENATOR BUNDE said “a large or substantial nunmber” is squishy.
He would like a better definition.

M5. SYDEMAN said it is term nology used across the country. She
couldn’'t find a state with a good definition. She believes it is
left to the discretion of the ethics comrittees. It is also the
exi sting language in Al aska's statutes right now

9:58: 38 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said that M. Sydeman nentioned that teachers
woul d be a substantial group, and he asked about fishers, crab
fishers, hair crab fisher, and how to determ ne substantial.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 20, 2008



M5. SYDEMAN said she has this discussion with nmany peopl e across
the country and she hasn’'t gotten a clear answer. The decision
must be nmade on a case-by-case basis.

SENATOR BUNDE said he applauds the goal but questions the
mechani sm for getting there.

9:59: 36 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said there are conflicts of interest when voting
on the floor. There are also conflicts elsewhere. For exanple,
he retired fromthe university and was asked himto cone back to
teach a class. Legislative attorneys said he can't work at the
uni versity because he votes on the university budget. Wat is
the connection with that conflict and a voting one?

10: 00: 38 AM
MS. SYDEMAN said those are separate parts of state statutes.

DAN WAYNE, Legal and Research Services Division, said there is a
specific statute keeping legislators from taking certain jobs
The concern, he believes, was about exerting influence to get a
job -- being hired because of |egislative status.

SENATOR BUNDE said he had the sanme experience. The constitution
says a person cannot have two positions of profit wth the
state. A public school teacher can be a |egislator because
schools are “not directly a facet of the state” as the
university is. There was a legislator from Juneau who taught at
the university, and no one challenged it.

10: 03: 00 AM
SENATOR FRENCH said he couldn’t work as a prosecutor in the off
season for the state but he could for a nunicipality.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE said nany | awrakers have been tal king about this
and it has been awkward. It would be helpful to see how other
states handle it. For this small community everyone knows
everyone, and a | arge nunber of people may get conflicted out.

SENATOR STEVENS said legislators don't want to take a position
on an issue where their constituents are split, and it mght be
convenient not to vote. Now, a person has to vote. He questioned
how the |egislature operates when people can weasel out on a
vote. It mght be difficult to get anything done if there were a
narrow majority.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 20, 2008



SENATOR FRENCH asked if this would change the tally of votes
required to pass a bill.

M5. SYDEMAN said those requirenments are in the constitution.

SENATOR FRENCH asked about a difficult issue, like a phone war,
where nenbers would skip out on the vote by declaring a false
conflict of interest. He asked what happens in that instance.

10: 06: 42 AM

M5. SYDEMAN said that is an inportant question. The ethics
committee could make a determ nation. There could be a nechani sm
for the body to determine if a conflict is real. It could be
rulings by a presiding officer or a vote by the body. The
uniform rules once called for a nmmjority vote to determne
whet her a nenber did have a substantial conflict, and then it
went to a two-thirds vote, and now it is unani nbus consent.

SENATOR BUNDE said if SCR 12 becones law, “and | declare a
conflict, then whether | had one or not and was prohibited from
voting would be a matter of a mpjority vote in the body.”

M5. SYDEMAN said that is not the intent of this bill. It relies
on the judgment of the individual legislator, so that no other
menbers have to judge. “This bill leaves that conpletely up to
the determination of individual |legislators.” People thought

there could be political maneuvering if one nenber were to be
judged by a majority. A nenber with a conflict nust go on record
and make the determnation. If there is abuse, the ethics
commttee is there.

10: 09: 17 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said the bill creates a huge opportunity for a
menber not to vote on tough issues. He has a friend who |ost an
el ection because he stood up and took the tough vote, “and he
could ve ducked it.” He asked how the ethics commttee can
consi der someone unethical who thinks there is sone personal
financial inpact. They may have to do a pol ygraph.

SENATOR STEVENS said one option is having the rules conmmttee or
| egi slative council decide. But that would throw sand in the
wheel s, and sonme may take advantage of that. The |egislature,
now, is not as bad as some options bei ng considered.

SENATOR BUNDE asked about another nenber deciding soneone el se
shoul dn’t vote.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 20, 2008



M5. SYDEMAN said that is why the bill leaves it up to the nenber
— we didn’t want other menbers pointing fingers.

10: 12: 27 AM
SENATOR GREEN asked, “How nmany other instances has the
| egi sl ature anended the uniformrules in statute?”

M5. SYDEMAN said this would not anend the uniform rules through
statute; it is a concurrent resolution. This particular rule has
been anended tw ce.

SENATOR CGREEN asked if it was anended by the adoption of new
uniformrules or by direction in statute.

10: 13: 10 AM
M5. SYDEMAN said she believes it was done in a joint session of
the legislature, but she is not sure.

SENATOR GREEN said the uniformrules and the adoption of Mason's
current manual were really big issues when she was newy
el ected. She hasn’'t heard that conversation as nuch recently,
but the uniform rules are considered powerful in order to keep
the legislature in charge of its business. The court has
recogni zed that. It nakes her nervous to amend them w thout the
adoption of a whole new set of uniformrules.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said she will set the bill aside, but it is good
for bringing up this discussion. Mnbers have been struggling
with how to handle conflicts. The body may want to consider
| ooking at the uniform rules. The Anchorage assenbly deals wth
conflicts of interest through its own internal rules, which
seens to work well. The discussion needs to conti nue.

SENATOR GREEN asked if for an exanple of soneone being
conflicted froma vote.

SENATOR BUNDE asked if a three-quarters vote would be better
t han the unani nous consent as a m ddl e ground.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said nenbers get cut off when they discuss why
they have a conflict. Maybe they should be in the public record.

SENATOR FRENCH said this is a difficult and fascinating issue —
ethically, politically, and philosophically. "W all know that
sonmething has to happen."” He suggested |ooking at exanples in
ot her states where it works. Perhaps it only happens every four
or five years. Apparently the other states can get their work

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- March 20, 2008



done with sone rule that prevents voting in sone circunstances.
It seenms |like the Alaska legislature works, but it also seens
like a dinosaur. “We need to be open to the idea that there are
nmet hods out there for dealing with what may be a circunstance
which is far nore rare than nost of us perceive.”

10: 18: 50 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said the public knows where a politician stands
when elected. G tizens know what they are getting and want their
el ected representatives to vote.

M5. SYDEMAN said there are many facets to the debate. The
commttee could establish a small task force.

SENATOR BUNDE noted the disenfranchi senent of the citizens who
el ect ed soneone who won't vote.

CHAI R MCAUI RE set aside SCR 12 as well as SB 203.
10: 21: 37 AM

M5. SYDEMAN said she has a separate presentation for SB 203. It
makes changes to the statute governing conflicts of interest.

CHAI R MCGUI RE set SCR 12 and SB 203 asi de.

The commttee took a brief at-ease at 10:22:21 AM

SB 213-LEG SLATI VE AUDI T DI VI SI ON PONERS

10: 23: 42 AM
CHAI R MCGAUI RE announced the consi deration of SB 213.

10: 23: 56 AM

SENATOR FRED DYSON, Al aska State Legislature, said he has had
interesting discussions on the scope of auditors' authority.
Page 1 of SB 213 notes that: “Audit has authority to | ook at the
books and accounts of all custodians of public funds and all
di sbursing officers of the state.” Senator Dyson wants the
division to have authority, if directed by Legislative Budget
and Audit Conmmittee (LBA), to audit any organization that has
public funds. Pat [Davidson] said she only has authority to
audit state organizations. The bill nakes it clear that she has
authority to audit any organization that gets noney from or
t hrough the state, including federal noney.

10: 26: 17 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 20, 2008



SENATOR BUNDE said line 13, page 1, is current law, and he asked
if the difference of opinion is what constitutes a custodi an.

SENATOR DYSON said yes. “Paragraph 2 doesn’t quite go where we
woul d want, because it seens to nmandate that that be done every
three years, and | wouldn’'t want Pat and her organization to
have to audit every group that receives noney every three
years.” So the new paragraph is necessary.

10: 27: 12 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said senior citizen organizations are funded by
the state, including the one in Kodiak, which pays for and
performs its own audit. That duty will now go to the state. Is
t hat what woul d happen?

SENATOR DYSON sai d he would hope not. H's goal is giving LBA the
authority to order an audit, “at their discretion and for their
reasons,” on any organi zation that gets noney through the state.
“I't wouldn’t be anything that they would be required to do, only
that they would have the authority to do.”

SENATOR FRENCH said the bill says "shall ...perform an audit of
an organi zation that receives noney from or through the state."
He asked how nmany organi zations that entails.

SENATOR DYSON said he mi ssed that.
10: 28: 38 AM

CHAI R MCGQUI RE noved conceptual Anendnent 1 to replace “shall”
with “may” on line 4 of page 1.

SENATOR FRENCH objected and said, “Don’t we want them to keep
doi ng what they have been doi ng?”

CHAI R MCGUI RE apol ogi zed.
SENATOR FRENCH suggest ed addi ng “as necessary” after “shall”.
SENATOR GREEN suggested putting “may” at the end of |ine 22.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said conceptual Anmendnent 1 will change page 2,
line 22 or 23, adding “and may” or “or may”.

SENATOR GREEN said the drafter mght want to rewite the
par agr aph.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- March 20, 2008



CHAIR MCGQUI RE said that is conceptual Anendnent 1. Hearing no
obj ections, conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

SENATOR GREEN said the legislature can't audit or require an
audit of a school district. It is up to the school board or the
borough assenbly to order the audit. “I think we are nmaking a
m ghty reach here to think that we can go to nonprofits and
funders that happen to receive state noney that they can cone
under our authority." She doesn’'t object to it, but there needs
to be legal consideration. There are audits in the departnent
that are required for school districts, but they aren't
necessarily legislative audits.

10: 31: 31 AM

SENATOR DYSON said sone states have this wording so they can be
a watch dog for public funds. Several states are allowed to
audit schools. He asked what can be done if there is a rogue
school district that the state pours noney into. The |egislature
has the responsibility to watch public funds. He said there was
sonme scandal with noney that was distributed to nonprofits out
of health and human services. There was a cozy relationship
between the departnent and the grantees. Currently the audit
division can only audit health and human services and its
process, not how the noney was used. He wants the division to
see how the public noney was used.

SENATOR BUNDE noted that the Adak School District had no
students for a year or nore, and the superintendent kept getting
noney and the school board kept hiring him because he kept
hiring them He thinks the education departnent finally shut
them down. He asked if the bill refers to federal nobney passed
t hrough the state and funded directly.

SENATOR DYSON said, “From or through the state, that’s line 23
and 24 on page 2.” The federal government trusts the |egislature
to be stewards of the noney it gives.

10: 34: 12 AM
SENATOR GREEN said the federal governnent sonetinmes does an
audit, taking a cue fromthe state. She noted an audit on sewer
wast ewat er .

SENATOR DYSON said he has seen sone past federal audits, and if
the state is not conformng in several areas there will be sone
draconi an things that happen. He wants to catch them before the
f ederal governnment does.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 20, 2008



10: 35: 14 AM

PAT DAVIDSON, Auditor, Division of Legislative Audit, said her
ability to go beyond state agencies is limted. “Legislative
audit has very broad but very vague authority.” Legislative
auditors have been around prior to statehood. Auditing other
than a state agency depends upon the grant agreenent, and sone
allow audits and sonme don’t. If, for exanple, the Departnent of
Health and Social Services gave noney to an entity to build a
health facility and LBA required Davis-Bacon wages, unless it is
in the grant agreenent that they wll conply with that, she
doesn’t have a basis for an audit. The intent of the bill is to
open up the scope of inquires that could follow state noney or
federal noney flowing through the state. It would broaden her
ability to look at financially and, possibly, performance-based
issues. If the legislature wanted |egislative audit to eval uate

a school district’s policies, procedures, and how well it is
achieving goals, the bill will allowit.
10: 38: 39 AM

SENATOR BUNDE asked if Ms. Davidson wants this authority.

M5. DAVIDSON said anything that will help the |egislature nmake
deci sions is something that her group should do.

SENATOR BUNDE said he served on LBA and has seen sone audits
with personal and political agendas, and audits aren't cheap.
How much does it cost to conduct an audit?

MS. DAVI DSON said from $10,000 to over $100,000. “We do bill out
under federal at a conplete billing rate at about $50 an hour
for the division.” Professionals do the work. “Wether or not
you want that section to be able to be done at ny direction as
| egislative auditor or you want to invest that authority only in
the budget and audit conmmttee to authorize that .. is an
important distinction.” Now the legislative auditor is required
to do certain things, and the way it is witten is permssive
for the division to start a financial-related audit. But a
performance audit needs to be approved by LBA. The LBA is a
gat ekeeper of her work | oad.

10: 41: 23 AM
SENATOR BUNDE suggested that the cost of an audit should be put
forward so the LBA knows what it will cost, particularly if an

audit is not notivated by altruist reasons.

M5. DAVIDSON said financial audits can be estimted, but
performance audits can't. “You don’'t know what you're going to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- March 20, 2008



get into. You don't know what sort of records are available.”
The LBA asks if an audit will be big or small or go snoothly.

10: 43: 01 AM
SENATOR BUNDE said the nunber of audits will blossom if the
commttee isn't extrenely thoughtful.

SENATOR STEVENS said the custodians perform their own audits,
and asked if the division has access to those. It would be
duplication unless the organization’s audit was respected.

M5. DAVIDSON said she would not duplicate any audits, and she
woul d not assume the responsibility for audits of any entity.
That nodel already exists. The division is required, by law, to
audit the state’'s financial statenments; however, organizations
such as the Al aska Housi ng Finance Corporation and the permanent
fund contract with CPA firnms to do their audits. There is a way
the division can rely on the work of others.

10: 45: 38 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked if the division can use the school
districts' audits.

M5. DAVI DSON said she believes that is true. She has been asked
to audit school busses. There are a nunber of statutes governing
how school districts deal wth bussing. The statutes are
referred to when the noney is given to the districts, so she has
done those audits. The division doesn't repeat financial audits.
The bill authorizes sonmething beyond that, 1ike performance
audits or sonething very specific.

CHAIR MCQUI RE asked if anything needs to be added to the bil
regardi ng duplication.

M5. DAVI DSON said conceptual Anmendnent 1 may do that. The other
policy is to let the legislative auditor initiate the audit or
require direction fromLBA It is the practice of the profession
to work with other auditors instead of duplicating work.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said SB 213 is a good idea and will keep everyone
on their toes, but she wants | egal advice.

10: 48: 18 AM
SENATOR BUNDE asked Ms. Davidson's opinion if the additional
audits allowed by the bill should be originated by the LBA.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 20, 2008



M5. DAVIDSON said that is a policy call. She has seen issues
come up where she approached the chair of LBA. Not being able to
initiate audits wouldn't create any substantial barriers. The
| egi sl ature needs to decide who to give the authority to.

SENATOR BUNDE said he agrees wth the goal of the bill. But he
is concerned about political notives from the people on LBA to
intimdate people or cause trouble.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how many extra audits can actually be done.
There are 2,000 groups that receive grants through the state.

10: 50: 52 AM

IVS. DAVIDSON said audits wth statutory deadlines are a
priority. Everything else just gets done as it cones up. The
delay can be several nont hs. There have been infornal
di scussions about creating a priority process. She doesn’'t know
how many audits wll be generated by SB 213. As legislators
understand that these organizations can be audited, there wll
be nore requests comng to LBA

10: 52: 22 AM

SENATOR DYSON said there nmay be sonme additional costs at the
di scretion of LBA, but fraud and wasting noney has a cost. The
| egislature has an innate responsibility to be stewards of
public noney. There is no downside to SB 213. It may be m sused,
but he trusts those on the LBA. On page 2, line 23, he has
t hought about addi ng "when approved by LBA" after “perforni.

10: 54: 31 AM
SENATOR BUNDE noved conceptual Anendnents 1 and 2.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said conceptual Amendnent 1 has been addressed
The comm ttee can offer conceptual Anendnent 2, as follows:

Page 2, line 23, follow ng “perfornf
I nsert: "when approved by the Legislative Budget
and Audit Committee"
SENATOR BUNDE said there nmay be some problens, but there is nore
good to this bill than negatives. A positive unintended
consequence will be nore forethought.

Hearing no objection, conceptual Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- March 20, 2008



SENATOR BUNDE noved to report SB 213 from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
bei ng no objection, CSSB 213(STA) passed out of commttee.

SENATOR DYSON said he will get |legal advice to ensure that the
statutes do not preclude this, “and if there is, we’'ll deal wth
it. ”

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair McCQuire adjourned the neeting at 10:57:29 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- March 20, 2008



